Steve Spencer
Superintendent

Rachel Alpert
Assistant Superintendent

2023-2024
Board of Directors

Ed Dressel
Lu Ann Meyer
Rob Ogilvie
Zach Steele
Jon Woods

Board Secretary
Juli Lichtenberger

Please join us at our
school board meetings,
Unless otherwise
scheduled the board
meets the second and
fourth Mondays
of the month,

District Office
Board Room
6:30 p.m.

Mission Statement
Dallas School District
is centered on students,
powered by
colluboration, built on
eqguity, and driven by
excellence.

Pallas School District
111 SW Ash Street
Dallas OR 97338

503.623.5594 ph
503.623.5597 fax

Agenda

Work Session — Construction Tour at LaCreole Middle School 6:00 p.m.

1.0

2.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10,0

11.0

12.0

Board Meeting at District Office Board Room - 6:30 p.m.
November 27, 2023
hitps://dsd2-org.zoom.us/j/84855147461

Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of the Agenda

Good News

3.1 Morrison Student Award Ceremony

3.2 Lyle parents, guardians, and the comnunity at large now have the
opportunity to provide anonymous staff shout-outs and sharing the
things they love about Lyle staff. Many great shout-outs are rolling
in that are really positive and encouraging.

Student Report — Rowan McDowell
Public Comment

Announcements
6.1 November & December Calendars 361
6.1.1 Next Board Meeting will be on Tuesday,
December 12, 2023 at 4:15 p.m. following a work
session at Dallas High School at 3:00 p.m.
6.1.2  Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting
December 5, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.
6.1.3  Finance Committec Meeting November 30, 2023
at 5:30 p.m.

Consent Agenda
7.1 Approval of the November 13, 2023 Board Minutes 363

Chemeketa Community College —
Betsy Earis and Jessica Howard 366

Oregon School Boards Association Board Assessment —
Kristen Miles

Dragon Online Academy — Shannon Ritter

Approval of Foreign Exchange Program AYUSA International
{Board Action) — Shannon Ritter 367

Oregon School Boards Association Election (Board Action) 368
12.1  Board of Directors Position 13
12.2  Legislative Policy Committee Position 13



12.3  Resolution to Amend Oregon School Boards Association’s
Bylaws Relating to Composition of the Board of Directors 377
12,4 Resolution to Amend the Oregon School Boards Association’s
Bylaws

13.0  Discussion Items
14.0  Executive Session per ORS 192.660

(1) To Evaluate the Employment-Related Performance of District
Personnel

15.0 Adjourn



www.dallas.k12.or.us

Phone: 503.623.55%4 « Fax: 503.623.55%97 « Address: 111 SW Ash Street - Dalflas, Oregon 97338

DALLAS
SCHOOL
DISTRICT

Public Participation in Board Meetings

During each school board meeting, the agenda has been set to include an item titled “public
comment.” itis during this portion of the agenda the public can comment on any item that is
oris not on the agenda.

Because of the nature of the Board’s work, it is typical that the Board will hear from a patron.
Public participation is a time for the Board to listen, not a time for discussion or responding to
questions, as the Board needs adequate time to process the information received to ensure
proper steps are taken going forward. The Board may direct questions to district
administrative staff to respond to after the meeting. If input is given related to an action item
later in the agenda, the Board will use the input during their discussion or deliberation of that
specific item. All public comment during a Board meeting is limited to 3 minutes for each
individual. Up to 5 minutes may be granted to one person who represents a group of 3 or
more with similar testimony. The Board Chairperson may adjust or extend allowable time
limits, if necessary.

The Board cannot hear complaints about specific school personnel during an open meeting. If
a patron has a specific complaint against district personnel, the board chair or the
superintendent can direct the patron to the appropriate complaint process governed by

board policy.

There are three ways to provide public comment at a Board meeting.

1} i you wish to address the Board in person during a Board meeting, please fill out the
request for public comment form available outside the boardroom. If the meeting has
started and you decide you would like to provide public comment, please alert the
administrator who was the greeter or the board executive assistant with your request
by simply handing them the public participation form. This will be directed to the
board chair.

2} If you wish to address the Board remotely {via Zoom) during a Board meeting, please
email Juli Lichtenberger, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent and Board,
(juli.lichtenberger@dsd2.org) at least two hours prior to the start of the meeting.
Clearly label the subject line as “Public Comment”. In the email state that you would
like to address the board remotely during the meeting, and include the topic.

Steve Spencer, Superintendent
Rachel Alpert, Assistant Superintendent
Board of Directors: £d Dressel e Lu Ann Meyer e Rob Ogilvie » Zach Steele o Jonathan Woods



3} If you wish to address the Board in hard copy or email please submit to juli
Lichtenberger, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent and Board, at
juli.lichtenberger@dsd2.org at least two hours prior to the start of the meeting.
Clearly label the subject line or document as “Public Comment

If you have questions about the district, we encourage you to contact our superintendent.

Thank you for your interest in Dallas School District.

All public mectings. assemblies and celebrations held by the Dallas School District 2 are reguired 1o be accessible 1o persons with disabilities

under Title 1f of the Americans with Disabdgities Act (ADA). Accommodations are available upon request to persons who require alternatively
formatted materials or awxihary aids to ensure effective communication and access Lo events. Mlease allow at Jeast 10 business days to arrange
for accommodations. All reguests should be sent to:

DO Reeeption

Datltas School District 2

1i1 SW Ash Street Or: c-mail compliance.officerzidsd2 org
DadHas, OR 97338

503-623-3594




SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
g £y £y !
Finance
Commiitee
Meeting
5:30 p.m.
A= M 1 St 45 A
05 UL 7 Yo 10 17
Citizens Neo Scheol
Qversight Holiday
Committee
Meeting
5:30 p.m,
g1 & A& ; o4 g = of F ) T
12 iad 14 B i {7 |
Board Meeting Technology
6:30 p.m. Advisory
Committee
Meeting
3.G0 p.m,
z & 69 L ) 4 FH /|
19 20 27 22 23 24 25
No Schoaoi No School No Schoal No Schoo! No Schoaol
K-12 K-12 K-12 Holiday
Conferences Conferences Conferences

27
Board Meeting
6:30 p.m.

28

Finance
Committee
Meeting
5:30 p.m.




SUN

MON

TUE

WED

FRI

SAT

03

04

05

Citizens
Oversight
Committee
Meeting 5:30
p.m.

06

07

08

12

Board Work
Session with
Dallas High
School 3:00
p.m.

Board Meeting

4:00 p.m.

13

15

e

[

18

Winter Break

19

Winter Break

20

Winter Break

21

Winter Break

22

Winter Break

é‘.
R
N
Qo

24

25

Winter Break

26

Winter Break

27

Winter Break

28

Winter Break

29

Winter Break

£.3
sar
o)

&

362



Minutes
Board Meeting
November 13, 2023
6:30 p.m.
https://dsd2-org.zoom.us/i/84855147461
District Office Board Room

Present: Jon Woods, Lu Ann Meyer, Ed Dressel, Zach Steele, Steve Spencer, Juli
Lichtenberger, Rowan McDowell, Bob Archer, Tim Larson, Tami Montague, Darrick
Bruns, Ron Spively, Kas Knoll, Nick Ingalls, Todd Baughman, Rachel Alpert, Ashlie

Miller,

Visitors: Kyle Diehm, Kendra Steele, Kimberly Tillery

Excused: Rob Ogilvie

1.0 Welcome/Pledge of Allegiance

2.0 Approval of the Agenda
Zach Steele moved to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Ed Dressel.

The motion passed unanimously.

3.0 Good News

3.1

32

3.3
34
3.5
3.6

3.7
3.8

Dallas High School Volleyball Team has been selected as the SA recipient
of the Les Schwab Team of the Month award for October 2023.

Brandi Jackson, Dallas High School Softball Coach, has been selected as
the Oregon nominege for the Natignal Federation of High Schools Coach of
the Year award for Softball.

Whitworth recently held STEM Night. There was a great turnout of about
60 students and their families.

Lyle’s first grade partnered with community emergency services and had
visits from the fire department, EMS, and Dallas Police.

Stoller Farms donated a number of pumpkins to the DLC classroom at
LaCreole. The students appreciated them.

LaCreole will be partnering with a professor from WOU for a “Code Can
Dance STEM + Arts Workshop™ whose fee the Dallas Community
Foundation is covering. The performance will be held November 28, 2023.
LaCreole has over 50 students signed up for the Dental Clinic.

Congratulations to Jaered Zumwalt being voted Dallas High School October

2023 Student of the Month.
Darrick Bruns, Whitworth Elementary School Principal, shared good news

with the Board.

4.0 Student Report — Rowan McDowell
Rowan McDowell shared events that are happening at Dallas High School.

363



5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

364

Public Comment
No public comment.

Announcements
6.1 November Calendar
6.1.1 Next Board Meeting will be on November 27, 2023 at 6:30 p.m.
6.1.2 Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting December 5, 2023 at 53:30
p.m.
6.1.3  Finance Committee Meeting November 30, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.

Consent Agenda

7.1 Approval of the October 23, 2023 Board Minutes

7.2 Staffing Report
Lu Ann Meyer moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Zach
Steele. The motion passed unanimously.

Financial Report — Tami Montague
Tami Montague, Director of Fiscal Services, shared the financial report for month
ending October 2023. The Ending Fund Balance is currently estimated at 5.79%

Teaching and Learning Report — Nick Ingalls

9.1 Student [nvestment Account Annual Report
Nick Ingalls, Director of Teaching and Learning, shared the annual report
for funds spent during the 2022-2023 school year. Nick Ingalls shared
highlights from the report.

9.2  2022-2023 At-A-Glance District Profile
Nick Ingalls shared highlights from the profile including increases in the
areas of on-track to graduate and eighth grade math scores. Discussion was
held.

9.3 English Language Development Request for Adoption Postponement

(Board Action)

Nick Ingalls shared a need to postpone the request to adopt an English
Language Development (ELD) curriculum. Currently an ELD curriculum is
being used but time is needed to confirm the effectiveness. After
determination is complete a request for adoption would be presented. Zach
Steele moved to postpone the English Language Development adoption,
seconded by Lu Ann Meyer. The motion passed unanimously.

Guaranteed Maximum Price for Bond Project One and Bond Project Two
(Board Action) — Bob Archer

Bob Archer, Director of Facilities, shared background information regarding the
bond bid packages. The requested amount for the Bid Package One is
$1,697,153.47 which includes work at Dallas High School, Morrison Campus, and
the Distriet Office. Bid Package Two has a requested approval amount of
$810,827.03 for work at Lyle and access controls, cameras, and intercoms. This



365

approval would allow our contractor to move forward with securing subcontractors.
Discussion was held. Zach Steele moved to approve the Guaranteed Maximum
Price tor Bond Project One and Two, seconded by Lu Ann Meyer. The motion
passed unanimously.
10.1  Facilities Update
Bob Archer shared an update on current projects throughout the district.
Citizens Oversight Committee discussed the gym at LaCreole Middle
School at the last meeting and are narrowing options down to three.

11.0  Reports
11.1  Enrollment Report
11.2  Charter Schools Enrollment Reports
11.3  Charter Schools Financial Reports
11.4  Charter Schools Minutes and Agendas

12.0 Discussion Items
12.1  Finance Committee Charge
Steve Spencer, Superintendent, shared the Finance Committee has asked for
direction as to what product or work could be completed by the committee
that would be useful for the Board. The Board reviewed the committee
charge from last year. Ideas were shared and discussion was held.

Steve Spencer, Superintendent, invited the Board to tour the construction
project at LaCreole Middle School. The Board would like to hold a work
sesston prior to the next meeting to tour the stte.

The Board asked for updated status on marketing the district and a website
redesign. Steve Spencer shared an update.

Discussion about having a standardized classroom lesson on the history of
various holidays was held.

Enrollment discussion was held. The Board would like information on the
number of students being homeschooled. Discussion regarding private
school enrollment was held.

13.0 Adjourn at 7:26 p.m.

Board Chair / Jon Woods Date

Board Secretfary / Juli Lichtenberger Date



Reducing College Costs for Dallas High Households Students
Last year (2022-23) 40 Dallas High School students paid $30 to Headcount Over 17,894 people took at least
participate in Chemeketa’s College Credit Now program. They earned one class from Chemeketa in 2022-23.

196 Chemeketa credits while in high school, saving their familes $25,546

in college tuition and fees. 182 Dallas High graduates who received Student Age
the Oregon Promise enroiled at Chemeketa in the past five years. The
Oregon Promise recipients from Dallas High have been awarded a total
of $493,749 in Oregon Promise grants.

Rewarding High Achieving Dallas High Students

123 Daltas High graduates with a 3.5 or better high schoo! GPA have
enrolled as Chemeketa Scholars over the past ten years (2013-2022).
Chemeketa Scholars are awarded a full tuition scholarship. The
Chemeketa Scholars from Dallas i gh accumulated a total tuition
savings of $689,769.

A Popular Choice for Dallas High Graduates

22% of Dallas High graduates from 2021—22 enrol led at Chemeketa
during the 2022-23 academic year.

Dallas High Alumm Success

In the past five years, 355 Dallas High alurmni completed a Chemeketa
certificate or degree and/or transferred from Chemeketa to a 4-year
institution.

21-25

Other Key Facts
Economic Contribution

Chemeketa's contribution to the regional economy {(wages, contracts,
student spending) totaled $832.7 million in 2021-22. (Lightcast, 2023)
Keeping Chemeketa Affordable

Total Cost: Chemeketa's $138 per credit tuition & fees for 2023-24 is one
of the more moderately priced of Oregon’s 17 community colleges.
Chemeketa Press From 1977 to 2015, the price of commercial textbooks
rose 1000% — three times the rate of inflation — making textbocks an
often insurmountable barrier for students. Something had to be done, so

White B Hispanic/Latino # Other
Not reported & Two or more

Chemeketa'’s administrators and faculty began to pursue a college-wide Note: Our percentage of Hispanic/Latino
initiative to lower the price of textbooks. Many solutions were proposed, students qualifies the college as a Hispanic
among them a project to allow faculty to create their own textbooks with Serving Institution.

the help of the college.
Chemeketa Press was launched in 2015, making Chemeketa the only

. . . e . Discover
community college in the nation publishing peerreviewed textbooks :
with criginal content authored by the college’s faculty. Through 2022-23, Chemeketa
Chemeketa Press books have saved students $5,916,000 over the cost of Community College
commercial textbooks. Our books have been used by more than 93,000 chemeketa.edu

students at Chemeketa. EO/AA/ADA/Tile IX institution



367

11/16/23

600 California 5t. Floor 10
San Francisco, CA 94108

Dear Board Members:

AYUSA is a non-profit, 1-1 visa exchange program for secondary students. We have recently been
working with a family in your district and as board policy JECBA states, we are applying for recognition as

an authorized program in your district.

AYUSA has been connecting students with host families since 1981. As such, members of our
organization were instrumental in the development of the Council for Standards for International
Education and Travel (CSIET). We are a designated program in good standing with the US Department of
State and our 2022 designation can be found attached which is valid for two years. Additionally, our
current CSIET letter and certification can also be found in the attachments.

In accordance with DOS Regulations, local representatives must live within 120 miles of the student and
host famity. Our local representative, Hope Walter, lives near your community and thus will be
adequately abie to support the needs of the family, student, and your school.

Qur program is based on more than 40 years of experience and data which has driven the development
and evolution of our program. The rules we have in place are designed to maximize the safety and
security of our students, while working to facilitate a mutually beneficial experience for all parties
invalved in the exchange experience. | have attached a digitaf copy of our handbook, and our rules can
be found on pages 7-12. Students and their natural families are made aware of these rules and sign that
they understand the rules and requirements at the time of appfication to our program.

The cost associated with being a participant on our program depends on the country of origin of the
student and the demand in the market. We work ajongside organizations in the home countries who
also have fees associated with their services and while | cannot provide figures on what they charge
students/natural families, the fees for Ayusa’s sponsorship range from 55000 to $7,000. These amounts
are comparable to most other J-1 visa sponsors in the US.

if there is any other information needed, we would be happy to provide that to you as well. Should you
have guestions or concerns, please contact me at 903-275-7886, or at mseay@ayusa.org.

Sincerely,
Misli Geouy
Misti Seay | | Regional Manager | | Ayusa

Western Region (AK, CA, HI, ID, MT, OR, WA, WY)

intrax AuPairCare Ayusa

World Headquarters | 600 California Street, 10”7 Floor | San Francisce, CA 94108 | Phone: +1 415.434.1212 |

WWW.aVUSa.ore



368

OSBA Board of Directors

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

Kraig Albright Date: 9/22/2023
13955 Stringtown rd

Narme:

Address: ) )
Insert your high-resolution

City/Zip: Dayton, Oregon digital photo (head shot):
1) Open this PDF in Adobe

2} Click on Tools tab

3) Click Edit PDF

Business phone:

Residence phone: 203 864 3588 4) Click on Add Image

Celf phone: 503 474 7687 g; ?fs‘ﬁffpﬁo‘;hzizi:c}im
E.mai. Kraig.albright@dayton.k12.or.us

DistricvEsDice; Payton SD 8

Term expires: 12/23 Years on board: _‘L_______

Region: Yambhill/Polk Position # 13

{ certity that if elected | will faithfully serve as a member of the OSBA Board of Directors. My nomination form has been

submitted to OSBA (or is attached to this document} as evidence.

S G 9/22/2023
Fd

Name Date
Be brief; please limit your responses fo 50 words per question.

1. Describe in your own words the mission and goals of OSBA.
The OSBA is an advocate for students and public education it serves a a voice for Oregon's
school boards. Advocacy is demonstrated through engagement with all stakeholders beyond
the board environment.
Our goal is to ensure that every child in Oregon has the opprotunity for edcuational succes no
mater who they are or where they may reside.

2. What do you want to accomplish by serving on the OSBA board of directors?
| would like to continue to be a voice for the Yamhill - polk region, being an advocate for our

unique blend of Districts.
Grow my role on the OSBA, finding a committee that can utilize my talents and abilities.

3. What leadership skills do you believe you bring to the board of directors? Give an example of a situation in which
you demonstrated these skills.
A foundation of good leadership is communication, | keep the lines open even through
disagreement.
Empathy — others perspectives are critical o understanding the complex issues OSBA tackles.
| think strategically, decisions are made with objective criteria.
During a recent OSBA meeting it seemed that one director’ s viewpoint may have been
excluded. | spoke up. The matter was addressed which demonstrated commitment by our body
to hear everyone. | feel the incident built trust, and highlighted our desire to be inclusive.

Email to 0SBAelections@osba.org, or mail to: Oregon School Boards Association, 1201 Court 5t NE, #400, Salem, OR 97301
Deadline: September 29, 2023, 5 p.m.
Materials submitfed by the candidate on this form may be subject to a public informalion request under ORS Chapter 192,



369

OSBA Board of Directors

4. What do you see as the two most challenging issues faced by CSBA?
Board stipends will likely change the makeup of many boards, we have already seen a
significant effort from OSBA to offer guidance, to help member boards navigate this minefield. |
believe that the ripple effects will last for a significant time.
Politics, our districts, towns, state and country are divided. OSBA will need to thread our way
through hot topics. | feel we did well with our equity statement, defining terms and
demonstrating that we stand for all kids. There is division working strategically to unite will

5. What do you see as the two most challanging issues faced by your region?
Supporting districts on Teacher recruitment, retention and training. Finding quality candidates
especially in specialty roles is becoming increasingly difficult.
Funding - Unforfunately, | have not seen a time when funding has not been an issue for
Oregon's schools. Helping our legislature to see the value in our children and making the
appropriate level of investment needs to be an area of ongoing focus. '

6. What is your plan for communicating with boards in your region?
Round tables were very effective, | plan to continue them.
Email, face to face is always preferred.
Many constituent district board members have my number and are not afraid to call!

Please continue to the next section.

Email to 0$BAelections@osba.org, or mail to: Oregon School Boards Association, 1201 Court St NE, #4006, Salem, OR 97301
Deadline: September 29, 2023, 5 p.m,
Materials submitted by the candidate on this form may be subject to a public information request under ORS Chapler 192.



370

OSBA Board of Directors
CANDIDATE PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL RESUME

Work or service performed for OSBA or local district (include committee name and if you were chair):

Dayton SD 13 board member, facilities committee, coach - Jr High, JV & Varsity football, HS

track,
OSBA board member position 13

Other education board positions held/dates:
St James School - advisory committee

Occupation (include at least the past five years):

Employers: Dates:
Advantis Credit Union - Facilities Manager September 2006 - Present

Schools attended {Include official name of school, where and whan):
High school: Dayton High School, Dayton Oregon 1988

College: Chemeketa CC 2013, George Fox University 2016
Degrees eamned: AAQT, BS Project Management

Education honors and/or awards:
George Fox - Certificate of Accademic Excellence

Other appiicable training or education:
DEI - Advantis & OSBA
LEAN / 5s - Daimier

Activities, other state and local community services:

Dayton Littleguy Football - Director 1899-present

Hobbies/special interests:
Kids & coaching whatever free time is left after that | like to fish and work on old cars.

Business/professicnal/civic group memberships; offices held and dates:
international Facilities Management Assn. 2007 - Present, member

Additional comments:

Emall to OSBAeiections@osba.org, or mall to; Oregon School Boards Assoclation, 1201 Court St NE, #400, Salem, OR 97301
Deadline: September 28, 2023, 5 p.m.
Materials submitied by the candidate on this form may be subject to a public informalion request under ORS Chapler 192,



OSBA Legislative Policy Committee
CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

Name: Edward Dressel Date: H27/2023
Address: 1215 SE Barberry Ave [T
' Insert your high-resolution
City/Zip: Dallas/97338 digital photo (head shot):
1} Open this doc in Adobe
Business phone: 503-831-1111 2) Click on Tooels tab
/ 3) Click Edit PDF
Residence phone: V8 4) Click on Add Image
~ ) 5) Navigate to where photo s
Cell phone: 503-269-0032 6) Position phote in this frame
E.mail: €d.dressel@dsd2.org
Districvesp/ce: Dallas SD
Term expires: 6/30/2027 Years on board: 0
Polk Position #:

Region:

| certify that if elected | will faithfully serve as a member of the OSBA Legislative Policy Commitiee, My nomination

form has been submitted to OSBA (or is attached to this document} as evidence.

Digitally signed by Edward Dressel

Edward Dfessel Date: 2023.09.27 13:42:57 -07°00' 0/27/2023

Name Date

Be brief; please limit your responses fo 50 words per question.

. What do you want to accomplish by serving on the Legislative Policy Committee (LPC)?

To help school boards govern effectively.

. What leadership skills do you bring to the LPC? Give an example of a situation in which you demonstrated these skifls.

I have a passion for operations and serving well. As a company owner and president, | am
constantly working with my team (employees) to help provide a great experience (including our
software, and sales and support team) with our customers--and in this context, it is working

writh Athare tn hoalin cnhanle citananad | oalea Anisg ararb-inmuadith naAanla thaat havoa Adiffavant nainke

. What do you see as the two most challenging legislative issues faced by OSBA?

| have a passion for operations and serving customers well. As a company owner and
president, | am constantly working with my team (employees) to help provide a great
experience (including our software, and sales and support team) with our customers.

. What do you see as the two most challenging legislative issues faced by your region?
A big one is the tension between serving larger and smaller school districts, including the differe

. What is your plan for communicating with boards in your region about legisiative issues?

| would be interested in what the best practices are.

Email to OSBAelections{@osha.org, or mail to: Oregon School Beards Association, 1201 Court St NE, #400, Salem, OR 97301
Deadline: September 29, 2023, 5 p.m.
Materials submitted by the candidate on this form may be subject to a public information request under GRS Chapter 192.

371



372
OSBA Legislative Policy Committee
CANDIDATE PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL RESUME

Work or service performed for OSBA or local district (include committee name and if you were chair);

None

Other education board positions held/dates:

Occupation (Inciude at least the past five years):
Employers: Dates:
RetireReady Solutions 2007 to present

Schools attended (include official name of school, where and when):
High school: Lutheran High School, Portland, OR (1986}

College:  mMulthomah University (1992), Willamette University (2023)
Degrees eamed: 1. itnomah University (1992), Willamette University (2023)

Education honors and/or awards:
Willamette University Atkinson Honors

Other applicable training or education:

Distinguished Toastmasters (DTM) award (2021)

Activities, other state and local community services:

Hobbies/special interests:
Triathlons (competed in 4 half-lronmans), reading.

Business/professional/civic group memberships; offices held and dates:

Corban University's Board of Trustees member (since May, 2022).

Additional comments:

Email to OSBAelections@osba.org, or mail to: Oregon School Boards Association, 1201 Court 5t NE, #400, Salem, OR 87301
Deadline: September 29, 2023, 5 p.m.
Materials submitted by the candidate on this form may be subject to a publfic information request under ORS Chapter 192,



OSBA Legislative Policy Committee
CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE

Name: Susan Graham Date: 09/29/2023

Address: 6270 Corvallis Rd (home)

Cityizip: Independence, OR 97351

Business phone:

Residence phone: 619-757-4530
619-757-4530

Cell phone:
i sgraham@central.k12.or.us

E-ma

DistrictESDICC: Central School District 13J

Term expires: 06/30/2027 Years on board: 1
Yamhill/Polk

4 13

Region: Position

I certify that if elected | will faithfully serve as a member of the OSBA Legislative Policy Committee. My nomination

form has been submitted fo OSBA (or is aftached fo this document) as evidence.

ogarSlr 09/29/2023

Name Date

Be brief; please limit your responses to 50 words per question.

1. What do you want to accomplish by serving on the Legislative Policy Committee (LPC)?

| want to assist my region with understanding what is happening with respect to educational
issues in the legisiative process. | plan to build relationships with our regions legislators and
help to educate them on the needs of the district.

2. What leadership skills do you bring to the LPC? Give an example of a situation in which you demonstrated these skills.

| am an accomplished networker and relationship builder. | have shown that recently in the
way | have been able to build connections in my community even though | moved here only in
2015 - yet am already established as a community resource with local government, the SD

And variea e ranneafite in tha racian Kleasr that P hoves maars svnariamos anth tha MCODOA A

3. What do you see as the two most chalienging legislative issues faced by OSBA?

Getting the honest attention of legislators and educating them on the issues, when there is so
much competition for their time.

4, What do you see as the two most challenging legisfative issues faced by your region?

Funding and workforce, especially with respect to SPED programs.

5. What is your plan for communicating with boards in your region about legistative issues?

Although | was not able to achieve this in my last "short" term on LPC, [ would like to start
regular communications to the Districts and become an additional resource to them.

Email to 0SBAelections@osba.org, or mail to; Oregon School Boards Association, 1201 Court St NE, #400, Salem, OR 97301
Deadline: September 29, 2023, 5 p.m.
Materials submitted by the candidate on this form may be subject to a public information request under ORS Chapler 192.

373



OSBA Legisiative Policy Committee
CANDIDATE PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL RESUME

Work or service performed for OSBA or local district {include commitiee name and if you were chair}.
School Board 13J current Board Member, LPC Position 13J (short term) current member, SD13J
Bond Development Committee Member,

Other education board positions held/dates:

Occupation (Include at ieast the past five years):

Employers: Dates:
Seif-Employed real estate management 02/2015 - present
Ernst & Young LLP 02/2007 - 05/2022

Schools attended (Include official name of school, where and when):
High school: Lakewood High School, Lakewood, CA, 1980

College:  S|U, Carbondale, IL 1992 / Univ of San Diego School of Law, San Diego CA 2006/2007
Degrees eamed: g Egucation, Training & Development / JD and LLM in Taxation
Education honors and/or awards:

Merit Scholarship (USD School of Law)

Other applicable training or education:

Activities, other state and local community services:

Governing Board Member, Family YMCA of Marion and Polk Counties; Branch Council Member,
Monmouth-independence YMCA,; Board Member and 1st VP at Monmouth Independence
Community Foundation; Volunteer Site Coordinator and Counselor, AARP Tax-Aide (Monmouth

lnrmmatiant Dact mmeitiane imeahioda acvrmarmina Roanard Mamaboare and AdAdid D armmmabtas manmsbhoose vrith thoes

Hobbies/special interests:

Reading, Cooking, Camping with my dog, Travel.

Business/professional/civic group memberships; offices held and dates:

None currently, but | have many year of experience with diversity initiatives and organizations
during my years working in public accounting.

Additional comments:

Email to 0SBAelections@osba.org, or mail to: Oregon School Boards Association, 1201 Court St NE, #400, Salem, OR 97301
Deadline: September 23, 2023, 5 p.m.
Materials submitied by the candidate on this form may be subject to a public information request under ORS Chapter 192.

374



OSBA Legislative Policy Commitiee
CANDIDATE ?’;?g JESTIONNAIRE
Abbie Warmbier Date: 3-29-23
2014 NE Lucy Belle St

Name:

Address: . .
) . Insert your high-resolution
City/Zip: McMinnville 97128 dig?[al phom (hca.d shot):
1) Open this doc in Adobe
2y Click on Tools tab
3} Chek Edit POF

Business phone:

Residence phone: 4) Click on Add Image

Cell phone: 719-248-8802 Z; g(ils\ll?grchll?o:zh?;i}i2(}:‘2r:e
E-mail. @warmbier@msd.k12.or.us

Districvesprcc; MeMinnville

Term expires:2025 Years on board: 2

Region: Yamhill/Polk Position #; 13

I certify that if elected | will faithfully serve as a member of the OSBA Legislative Policy Commiittee. My nomination
form has been submitfed to OSBA (or is attached fo this document) as evidence.

Y L ;
.“' L) L4 [ .i j - /
BN ﬁ}”!,of LGt A 9-29-23

375

Name"’ Date

Be brief; please limit your responses fo 50 words per question.

1. What do you want to accomplish by serving on the Legislative Policy Committee (LPC)?

| want our board and our region's boards to be kept up to date about state paolicies that are
coming up. | hope to help our legislators understand what is really happening in our schoois

now.

2. What leadership skills do you bring to the LPC? Give an example of a situation in which you demonstrated these skills.

Some of my leadership skills include strategic thinking, interpersonal communication skills,

integrity, commitment to diversity, organizing, and conflict resolution. When working with our

district on our integrated plan, we brought in many community members with varying ideas. |

was able to connect with that diverse group with my interpersonal skills and explain to they
3. What do you see as the two most challenging legislative issues faced by OSBA?

I think funding is always a challenge to be able to predict and create accurate budgets. The

newest laws around special education will cause issues in implementation and may need to be

revised.

4. What do you see as the two most chailenging legislative issues faced by your region?

In our region, teacher recruitment and retention is a big issue in our smaller school districts. Sey

5. What is your plan for communicating with boards in your region about legislative issues?

I would be happy to offer zoom times to connect with other boards. | know board members are

busy so | would follow that up with an email for those who couldn't join.

Email to OSBAelections@osba.org, or mai! to; Oregon School Boards Association, 1201 Court 5t NE, #400, Salem, OR 87301
Deadline: September 28, 2023, 5 p.m.



376

O Legisiative Policy Committee
CANDIDATE PERSONAL/PROFESSIONAL RESUME

Work or service performed for O8BA or local district (include committee name and if you were chair);

I'm currently the vice-chair of the McMinnville School board. | served two years on the policy
subcommittee, one year on the facilities/long range planning subcommittee. I'm in my second
year on the Instruction subcommitiee and my first year on the fiscal subcommitte.

Other education beard positions held/dates:
none

Occupation {Include at teast the past five years):

Employers: Dates:

OSU Extension Jan 2023- present
McMinnville Playschool 2018-2022
Pullman School District 2009- 2017

Schools attended (Include official name of school, where and when):
High school; Pueblo West High School, Puebio West Colorado

College: | infield College American University
Degrees earned:

BA M.Ed. in Education Policy and Leadership

Education honors and/or awards:

Other applicable training or education:
| was a classroom science teacher for 8 years.

Activities, other state and local community services:

Hobbies/special interests:
baking, outdoor activites iike hiking, camping, canoeing

Business/professional/civic group memberships; offices held and dates:
Yambhill County Democrats Treasurer 2020-2021

Additional commenis:

Email to OSBAglections@osba.org, or mail to: Oregon School Boards Association, 1201 Court 5t NE, #400, Salem, OR 97301
Deadline: September 28, 2023, 5 p.m.



Resolution

Resolution to Amend Oregon School Boards Association’s
Bylaws Relating to Composition of the Board of Directors

WHEREAS, the Oregon School Boards Association (OSBA) was formed in 1946 as a volunteer
association of locally elected public school boards and transitioned te a nonprofit corporation under
Oregon Revised Statute Chapter 65 as of July 1, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Rural School Board Advisory Committee has been active and publicly
supported by OSBA’s Board of Directors since April 22, 2022; and has developed a mission
statement and goals; and has established bylaws; and

WHEREAS, the Advisory Comunittee is ready to clect officers and their Rural Leadership
Assembly; and

WHEREAS, the Advisory Committee has articulated its mission as follows: “To build collaborative
relationships and promote quality education for all students with emphasis on the unique needs of school
boards and students in rural communities.”

WHEREAS, OSBA’s Board of Directors recognizes the importance of the Advisory Committee's
value and mission; and

WHEREAS, the Advisory Committee has respectfully requested that the Board of Directors submit
a resolution to the membership creating the Oregon Rural School Board Members Caucus and
designate a seat on the OSBA Board of Directors and Legislative Policy Committee.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the OSBA Boeard of Directors that the proposed bylaws
amendment designating a Caucus representative as a voting member of the OSBA Board of
Directors and Legislative Policy Committee be submitted to the membership for consideration
during the 2023 OSBA election; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the bylaws with the proposed amendments and a copy of this
resolution be forwarded to all association member boards in accordance with OSBA’s adopted

elections calendar,

Submitted bv: OSBA Board of Directors

377



378

BYLAWS

OREGON RURAL SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS CAUCUS
OF THE

OREGON SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION



ARTICLE 1
ARTICLE 2
2.1
2.2
ARTICLE 3
3.1
3.2
3.3
34
ARTICLE 4
ARTICLE S
5.1
5.2
5.3
54
5.5
5.6
5.7
ARTICLE 6
6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5

66 .

ARTICLE 7
a7
7.2
73
7.4
ARTICLES .

ARTICLES

ARTICLE 10
10.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHARTER

MISSION AND GDALS:
Mission

Goals

MEMBERSHIP
Qualification

Members

Attendees

Membership List

BUDGET

MEETINGS

Annual Meetings
Regular and Special Meetings
Notice

Quorum

Organization

Records

OSBA Staff Liaison
CAUCUS LEADERSHIP COUNCIL
Composition.
Term - :
Nomination and Election
Designations : S
Resignation .
Vacancié's't'g_-'f ' 5

"Removal

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Compd;_i'i.t_ion s
Responsibilities
Ratificatidh_
Administ_f;_ition
COMMITTEES

_ SEAT ON THE OSBA’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GENERAL PROVISIONS
Amendment of Charter

Page

VT T W U B s B S S D W W W WL W R RN R R M A R M R R b 53 s

379



ARTICLE 1
CHARTER

The Qregon School Boards Association (the “QOSBA”) exists solely to perform essential governmental
functions and all of its income must accrue to the State of Oregon or its political subdivisions as required
under {RC Section 115. 0SBA’s mission is to improve student success and education equity through
advocacy, leadership and service to Oregon public school boards.

OSBA is aware and acknowledges that diversity is a core value of OSBA. OSBA desires to identify areas of
concern and causation, convene a caucus of stakeholders, and create a plan to better promote and
support the success of rural students. :

Tothis end, The OSBA Board of Directors has formally recognized the Oregon Rural School Board Members
Caucus (the “Caucus”) to serve as a resource and provide guidance and leadership for these mitlatives to
the OSBA Board of Directors

The activities of the Caucus shall align with OSBA bylaws as well as complement not duplicate, OSBA’s
efforts on behalf of all local governing boards.

ARTICLE 2

NAME, Missnou A_ND GOALS:

21 Name: This organization shall be known as the Oregon Rural School Board Members Caucus of
the Oregon School Boards Association (OSBA). S :

2.2 Mission: To build collaborative relationships and promote quality education for all
students with emphas:s on the unlque needs of school boards and students in rural
communities. : : :

2.3 Goals:

221 To elévéte the voice of rural school! districts and recognize their unique needs.

o 2. 2 2 To build and mamtaln collaborative relationships between OSBA and rural school
“boards. :

223 To de\kelop, promdte, and advance legislation supporting rural schools and
understand the impact of statewide legislation to each rural community and district.

- 2,.2.4  To build collaborative relationships and promote quality education for all students
“with emphasis on the unique needs of school boards and students in rural communities.

2.2.5 To éupport school boards in rural communities by prioritizing professional
development of rural board members and bringing training and other resources to rural
areas.

380



ARTICLE 3

MEMBERSHIP

3.1 Qualification. All members must support the purposes and goals of the Caucus as set forth in
Article 2.

3.2 Members. The Caucus members may include any elected or appointed member of any public
board of education in Oregon who are active members in good standing with the Oregon School Boards
Association and serve a school district with o population density of less than 200 people per square mile
and/or total school district population less than 20,000 people. All board members of Oregon Education
Service Districts are eligible to participate in the Rural Caucus. If a school board member or district does
not meet the aforementioned qualification but feels they are indeed a rural district, an appeal process
will be available as outlined in policy. Caucus members may participate in all discussions, vote, and serve
as an officer of the Caucus. Members must attend the meeting in person {or virtually) to vote. Voting by
proxy shalf not be permitted. -

3.3 Attendees. The Caucus may, in its discretion, invite to b'artici_pa'te in any meeting or event any
other individuals who support the purpose and goals of the Caucus as set forth in Article 2.

3.4 Membership List. The Membership list shall be maintained by the Secretary/Treasurer.
ARTICLE 4
BupGeT

4.1 Budget. The Caucus shall sub_ﬁjit an annual 'budget request as outlined under the OSBA budget
process, including approval by the OSBA Board of Directors. The request shall set forth the areas of
concern, recommended actions, and annual goals.

ARTICLE 5

MEETINGS

5.1 : ‘Annual Meetings. An anm',i'al meeting of the Caucus shall be in conjunction with the OSBA Annual
Convention at which time the Caucus shall elect officers and shall conduct other business as may properly
“be brought before the meeting of the Caucus.

5;2 . Regular and Speciai Meetings.

"5..2.1 Regular Meetings. The Caucus shall meet as often as required to achieve the goals
outlined in its annual Work Plan. These meetings shall be scheduled for the year at the Annual

Meeting.

5.2.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members for any purpose may be called, either
in writing or by e-mail, by the President or by a majority of the Executive Committee. Such a
request shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting,

5.2.3 Place of Meetings. Regular and special meetings of the Caucus shall be held at any
location {or virtually) within Oregon as designated by the President or the Executive Committee.

2

381



53 Notica.

5.3.1 Notice and agenda of every annual meeting, regular or special meeting of members,
stating the time and place thereof, shall be posted to the OSBA website, no less than 14 days prior
to such meeting.

5.4 Quorum. Except as otherwise provided by law, the presence at any meeting of a majorlty of the
Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum.

5.5 Organization. The President may determine in their sofe discretion whether any meeting of the
Caucus shali be held in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order. e

5.6 Records. The President shaill see that all correspondence, minutes, agendas, and Charter be sent
to and kept on file with OSBA. Minutes from each meeting shall be posted to the OSBA website.

5.7 OSBA Staff Liaison. The Executive Director of OSBA shall designate a staff member to serve
as a liaison representative to the Caucus. The designee shall not have voting rights.

ARTICLE 6 .
Rural Leadership Assembly

6.1 Composition. The Rural Leadership Assembiy of the Caucus shall consist of 9 members, and shall
include one representative from each OSBA district with 10 or more districts defined os rurol { Regions 1,
2, 4, 6, 9, and 14), plus 3 agt-Large members. The executive committee (President, Vice-President,
Secretary/Treasurer) shall be elected from the body of the Rurai Leadersh;p Assembly by the members of
the Rural School Board Members Caucus. ' :

6.2 Terms. The Rural Leadership Assembly members shall each serve two-year terms. The President,
Vice-President & Secretary/Treasurer shall each serve a one-year term. The President, Vice-President,
Secretary Treasurer, Regional Members, and Members-at-Large may serve any number of consecutive
terms. Each officer.shall hold office until the term has expired or until a successor has been duly elected
and qualified for the position, or until the officer can no longer hold the position because they no ionger
qualify to be a member._of the Caucué as defined in Article 3 above, or because of removal or death.

63 .Nommation and Electlon

6.3.1 Nomlnatlon Ruraf Leadership Assembly members may be nominated by either (a) the
nominating comml__ttee or (b} a caucus member at the annual meeting.

6.3.2  Election. :'fhe members shall elect the Leadership Council by majority vote at the annual
- meeting. Positions 1, 4, 9, and at large #1 shall be elected in even numbered years, and positions
12, 6, 14, at large #2 and at large #3 shall be etected in odd numbered years.

6.4 Designations

641 President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Caucus and the Executive
Committee. The President shall appoint ali standing and special committees and shall be an ex
officio member of all committees, except the nominating committee, with voting power. The
President shall sign all official reports of the Caucus.

382



6.4.2 Vice President. The Vice President shall have such duties as from time-to-time may be
assigned by the Executive Committee, and in the absence of the President, the Vice-President
shall have and perform all the powers and duties of the President.

6.4.3  Secretary/Treasurer. The Secretary/Treasurer shall keep the minutes and records and
shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of taw and this Charter,
and such other duties as from time-to-time may be assigned by the Executive Committee, The
Secretary/Treasurer shall maintain a roster of the current membership. The Secretary/Treasurer
shall have the responsibility for receiving and disbursing all funds related to the Caucus in
coordination with the OSBA liaison. The Secretary/Treasurer shall report regularly to the
Executive Committee, shall prepare a written yearly financial report to be distributed to the
members at each annual meeting, and shall perform other duties assigned by the Executive
Committee. T

6.5 Resignation. A Leadership Assembly member may resign by filing a written resignation with the
President or Secretary/Treasurer of the Caucus or the President of OSBA.

6.6 Vacancies. Any vacancy in any office may be appoiﬁtéd_for the unexpired portion of the term by
a majority of the Leadership Assembly at the next regular or special meeting.

6.7 Removal. Any member of the Leadership Assembly who misses more than two meetings out of
any four consecutive meetings, unless they are excused by the Executive Committee for a valid reason,
may have their position vacated by action of the Leadership Assembly. :

ARTICLE 7
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

7.1 Composition. There shall be an Executive Committee made up of the President, Vice-President,
and Secretary/Treasurer, B

7.2 Responsibfl}tigs_. The Exe;y_t_ivé Commit_tee _shall Have the following responsibilities and powers:
{a) To resp;nj_:d toany ingquiry or ques;cion from OSBA.
-_-.{b) | '”"'To_;_l_ct on behé_l_fpf the Caucus when deemed necessary by the President.
{c) To rév.i.eyy__plans aﬁa ..programs to be presented to the Caucus at its meetings.

(d) To give direction to the OSBA ligison on legislative action to come before the state
= legislature on which there is no formal Caucus policy or resolution.

{e) Mem_b_eré of the Executive committee will be elected from the Rural teadership Assembly.

7.3 Ratifitqﬁon. 'Any actions by the President shall be reported to the Executive Committee as soon
as the action has taken place. All actions of the Executive Committee shall be subject to ratification by

the Caucus at the next meeting of the members.

7.4 Administration. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and all
actions by the Executive Commiittee shall be reported promptly to the membership. Such actions shall be
subject to review by the membership, provided that no rights of third parties shall be affected by such

review.

383



ARTICLE 8

COMMITTEES

The President may establish committees of 2 or more members 1o serve at the discretion of the
President. These committees would consist of such persons and perform such duties as the President
designates from time to time; provided, however, that the committees may not act on behalf of the
Caucus but may make recommendations to the Caucus for approval. The Chair of any such committee
shall be a member of the Leadership Assembly. -

ARTICLE9
SEAT ON THE OSBA’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND LEGISLATIVE POLICY COMMITTEE _

9.1 The Caucus shall appoint one officer from the Rural Leadership Assemnbly to serve as'li'a_is__on to
the OSBA Board of Directors and to be a voting member of the OSBA Board of Directors for a two year
term. That liaison shall hold all of the rights and responsibilities of a member of the OSBA Board of

Directors.

8.2 The Caucus shall appoint one member from the Rural _I_.eadérship Assembly to serve on the
Legislative Policy Committee for a term of two years.

ARTICLE 10
GENER_A_L_ PROVISIONS
10.1  Amendment of Bylaws

10.1.1 Bylaws may 'be aitered, amended, or feplaced by a majority vote of the members of the
Caucus who are present and votlng at the annual meetsng

10.1.2 Notlce of proposed bylaws changes shall be in the annual meeting agenda and sent to all
members 15 days prlor to the annual meeting.

10.1.3 _Omiss:ons fr__o_m thtS Charter shall be governed by Robert’s Rules of Order, when they do
. ‘not conflict with the Charter.

ok ok ok ok sk ok ok

.'T.he foregoing charter W_és adopted by the active membership of the OSBA Rural Caucus on
(o Jmonth{ =0 ) date { Y year.

384



Resolution

Resolution to Ammend the OSBA’s 2018 Bvlaws

WHEREAS, the Oregon School Boards Association (OSBA) was formed in 1946 as a volunteer association
of locally eiected public school boards; and

WHEREAS, 1n 2017, through a vote of the Membership, OSBA was incorporated snder ORS Chapter 65 to
nonprofit status and Bylaws replaced the Constitution.

WHEREAS, in 2018, through a vote of the Membership, the Bylaws were amended to expand the OSBA
Board of Directors and the Legislative Policy Commuttee with representatives from the School Board
Members of Color Caucus.

WHEREAS, The Bylaws have not been amended since 2018, the OSBA Board of Directors determined,
based on its review of the proposed changes, that it was in the membership’s best interest to amend the
Bylaws; and

WHEREAS, the following only reflects a high-level averview of the proposed changes, all changes are

reflected in the proposed bylaws.

e Clarification of the Membership voling process for both reselutions and bylaw amendments.

e (Clarification of an exception to the term limits for the OSBA director serving as immediate past president.

» Clarification of the definition of a quorum for the OSBA Board ot Directors.

+ (Combining the Finance and Budget Committees and outline the terms of the members.

e Adding a Rural School Boards Caucus representative to the Board of Directors and the Legislative Policy
Commuttee (LPC).

* Adding language to reflect the School Board Members of Color Caucus representation on the LPC, which
was inadvertently omitted during the 2018 amendment.

¢ Adding information regarding the PACE Board of Trustees under the Committees and Caucus section of
the Bylaws.

¢ Adding language stating caucuses must comply with OSBA policies/guidelines and adding language to
establish the Rural caucus.

« FHdits to grammar, punctuation, and language for readability.

WHEREAS, after reviewing the recommended OSBA Bylaws as proposed by staff and legal counsel, the
OSBA Board of Directors supports the recommendation to amend the Bylaws:

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the OSBA Board of Directors that the proposed Bylaws be submitted
to the membership for consideration during the 2023 OSBA election; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed Bylaws and a copy of this resolution be forwarded to all
member boards of the Association in accordance with the OSBA Board of Directors adopted elections

calendar.

Submitted by: OSBA Board of Directors

385



As_Amendéd by the Membership: December 2018
Suggested Revisions: September 23, 2023




387

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
SECTION 1 PURPOSE e ettt ettt 1
SECTION 2 I E B E RS L e e e et et e e e e e e e e a e ianaera s 2
2.1 F T 10 171 a1 2 PSSO R PRSP 2
2.2 DU S ettt et ettt et e e e et e At e e oee s eeeee e eee et teettetet s aageatenessere s e reaearttee et anneenrasares 2
2.3 Reserved Powers of the Members ... easraes .................................. 2
2.4 VOHNG POWEN —.oooooeeeoeoeeee oo oo 2
25 Process of Approval of Member Resolutions ..., e 3
2.6 Regional Election of Directors and LPC Members....... .............. 3
2.7 Modification of Regions.........coocovviiececiisann .................... et r et e et e s reraranreeennn- 4
2.8 Annual Meetings......ccoiiiiiiii e ee oAb e et eeet e eeee s s 4
2.9 Special Meetmgs ............................................................. 4
2.10  Telephonic/Video Meetings ..........., Rt bR L e et b e E e e 1AL SR b b e bt e e et e e e nE e R et e R et st v e ererenb e e s 5
2.11  Place of Meetings .oocvcvviveiviciniinninenn ...... | ................................................. 5
2.12  Action by Written Ballot ............c..eee eevvenenseneenen O ST UUOTOT RSOSSN 5
2,13 Quorum Unanimous WItten CONSENT..... i 5
2.14 Quersm-and Voting .................... | .................................................................................... 5
SECTION 3 5 '
31
3.2
34 Te |
35  COmMPpOSItioN...i i et s e e st s v et 6
36 VAEAIGIES oo 7
3.7 0 RESIGNATION wovtraiuresiereiissiteticsiteaetebes st esesestesess e besesa s e seseer s bneens s h e Ao e s s e e e bt b n bRt eneneeb s enns 8
3.8 Removai....:_..._.:..'..'. ................................................................................................................................ 8
3.9 IMIEEHINGS oo oeereecoee et 8
3.10  Notice of IVIEEEINES L ittt ettt e et e e 8
311 WaAIVEE OF NOICR oottt e e e 8
3,12 QUOTUm adMOtHE e 8
3.13 O Y L o oottty s its s eieisesiiiiisi i eeisiesersistesesseirrrierrseiieerteltereriiiiveriiiiirieciiiitieriiieiieisiiiirrsciiziiries 8
3,14 Presumption OF ASSENT i e 8

{04159471-1} |



(continued)
Page
3415 COMPEISATION . ottt e e e et ettt e e e e et 9
34516 Director Conflict of Hterast o e 9
SECTION 4 COMMITTEES AND CAUCUSES ..ottt erane et et ann e 9
4.1 Standing COMMITEEES ooviiiiiri s ...................................... g
4.2 Other Board COmMMITLEES. ...ccvieivvrirecrriere s eeeee e srannnens OO 10
4.3 AGVISONY COMMITIEES. . creiiieeet ettt e e e s e e s sernne s s e ettt 11
4.4 CAUICUSES cevereeeeeeeteeeteeeeeeeeseseneesseese e ses e s seee e e ereess e e e ten e e e e snssnsassamssesensssasenseeesenseesseas ettt 11
B85 ADIUNISIEATON ..o oesee e eeeeeessrreees e coeesessesse s s seemsooees s cesseressssesereeenre e e 11
SECTION 5 OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ..ottt ereri e e ettt rerecrent e s ssenssesasssan e s e savar s sanansesnsneneens 11
5.1 Appomtment ...................................................... 11
5.2 Dessgnation ........................................................... 1312
5.3 EHEIIEY e e b Eeiineifeiteeseieeesitierereniiisiteneiienes 12
5.4 Compensation and Term of Office ....... e ap et e s eserene e et e e e be et e et e e eenrnaeenan 1312
5.45  Removal and Resignation .......ccccoiiivevvirieneeninninnas ' .................................................... 3312
556  Officers.nnnnn, s g e ............................................................................ 12
SECTION6  NONDISCRIMINATION S T T 13
SECTION 7 GENERAL PR_Q_VISIONS........;’.':.;"....................; .................................................................................... 13
7.1 Amendment.of By!aws...._..'.'..._.', .......................................................................................................... 13
7.2 Inspection of..'Boqi_cs_and Re.cords ................................................................................................. 1314
7.3 Checks, Drafts, Etc ................................................................................................................. 1314
7.4 De.posits e ——————o——— oo et et 1o tsee st e 1314
7.5  Lloansor Gue.lr:'antees .................................................................................................................... 1314
| 7.6 EX O CULION OF DO T TIES et oot teect i iee ittt et e ettt e s e e et et aen e s saabesann b e b et naeeannns e ernseeenaeen 1314
7.7 . Insurance ......... oo e e e e et et 14
7.8 Fi§ca_t Y EBI veerrieieseiaeeiaseeasetetseassa b e aaer e eaen e rser b eR R bt et see SRR e ea e b e oAb ene e e s seeteeasesennensenntenn e esenbenis 1415
7.9 Sevérabili_ty ................................................................................................................................ 1415

{04159471-1}

TABLE OF CONTENTS

388



SECTION 1 PURPOSE

A The Oregon School Boards Association (the “Association”) exists salely to perform essential
governmental functions and all of its income accrues to the State of QOregon or its political
subdivisions as required under IRC Section 115. In particular, the Association’s mission and purpose
are as follows:

B-A..__To work for the general advancement and improvement of the education of all public school
children of the State of Oregon.

&B. ..To gather and disseminate information pertinent to the successful operation of pubiic
schools.

B-L. __To work for the most efficient and effective organization of public schools of t'his_ state.
“Public schools” include local school districts, education service districts, the State Board of
Education and community colleges classified as a political subdivision.

&D.___To work for adequate and dependable financial support for the public schools of this state.

EE.  To study ail legislation which affects the public schools of Oregon and to support and work
for that which appears to be desirable and to keep members informed thereof. To propose
and work for the enactment of proper educational legislation.

G-F.  To encourage the establishment and maintenan_cé of best practices and high standards in the
conduct and operation of the public schoo! educational system.

H.G.  To studyand mterpret educatmnal programs and to relate them to the needs of pupils.

EH.  To promote publlc understandlng of the role of schooi boards and school board members in
the Emprovement of educatlon '

&l To conduct seminars, conferences and research projects in the various aspects of education
for the benefit of members.

K_J __To endeavor to implement the policies, beliefs and resolutions of the Association members
and board of directors.

K. To do such other thmgs as the member boards or board of directors may deem appropriate
for the accompllshment of these and other purposes which tend to improve public education,

ML To enterintp such cooperative agreement with members for the pooling of resources and the
provision of services as may result in the more efficient utitization of district resources and

accrue to their financial advantage.

SECTION 2 MEMBERS

2.1 Admission. All members must qualify as (1) a “political subdivision” as defined under Treas
Reg § 1.103-1{b) and Revenue Ruling 78-276, 1978-2 CB 256 and {2) as one of the following:

2.1.1  Local School District as defined under ORS Chapter 332;
Page 1

(041594711}

389



2.2

2.3

24

2.1.2

2.1.3

214

2.15

Education Service District as defined under ORS Chapter 334;
Community College District as defined under ORS Chapter 341;
State Board of Education as defined under QRS Chapter 326; and

Any other governmental educational organization qualifying as a political subdivision,

as approved by resolution of the board of directors.

Dues. Annual dues shall be set by majority vote of the members and shall be based on
resident Average Daily Membership (ADMr) as of December 31 of the preceding year as reported to
the Oregon Department of Education. Dues shall be payable on July 1 of each year-and shall become
delinquent on September 1 of each year. Member status shall automatically terminate for members
failing to pay dues by September 1 unless an extension is requested and granted by the board of
directors.

Reserved Powers of the Members. The following corporate actions require the consent and
approval of the members: ' '

2.3.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

Efection and removal of directors;

Election and removal of the Legiélativa Policy Committéé (“LPC”} members;
Approval of resoluticons to effechate any of t..ﬁe following:

(a) Adop_ti_ori;'é:me_ndment, or_:'re.statement of the articles of incorporation or
bylaws; Bt

{b) - Modification _té the region des.c.riptions set forth in Section 2.6.1; and the

{c) biss_o__l__ut_ién, merger, or the sale, pledge, or transfer of all or substantially all of

.. the Association’s assets.

thing Power. -

2.4.1

Election of__l_.)irectors and LPC Members. For the purposes of nominating and electing

* directors and LPC members, each member shall have one vote.

2.4.2 Resolut_io_n.' For the purposes of approving a resolution, each member shall have one
vote on all resolutions except as follows:

{04155471-1}

(a) ' K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between 15,600 and 23,400 shall have two
votes.

s} K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between 23,400.1 and 31,200 shall have
three votes.

{c) K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between 31,200.1 and 39,000 shall have
four votes.

Page 2

390



2.5

2.6

{04159471-1}

{d} K-12 Local Districts with an ADMr between-of 39,000.1 and-abeveor more
shall have five votes.

Process of Approval of Member Resolutions.

2.5.1 Generally, members shall approve resolutions annually by ballot vote. Members or
the board of directors may submit a resolution for member approval. Such resolutions shall
be submitted to the board of directors no later than September 30th. The board of directors
shall distribute all timely submitted resolutions, together with an official ballot, to the
members no later than October 15. Members shall vote by ballot submitted to the board of
directors no later than December 15. '

2.5.2 The board of directors may call a special meeting of the members under Section 2.9,
as necessary. S

Regional Election of Directors and LPC Members. -

2.6.1 Regional Voting. For the purposes of nominéting and electing the board of directors
and LPC members, the Association members shall be organized into and represented by
region: : .

(a) Eastern Region includé_s all of the members located in the counties of Baker,
Grant, Malheur, Union, Wallowa, and Wheeler.

(b) Gorge Region includes all bf the fnembers located in the counties of Gilliam,
Morrow, Sherman, Umatilia, and Wasco.

(c) .. Central Regiori_"_:_ihciudes all of the members located in the counties of Crook,
Deschutes, and jefferson.

{d) Sou_‘_c__heast. Region includes all of the members located in the counties of
. Harney, Klamath, and Lake.

{e) | 'Sp_uthern'Ré_gipn includes all of the members located in the counties of
Jackson and Josephine.

{f) Lane Region includes all of the members located in the county of Lane.

- (8) Claékamas Region includes all of the members focated in the county of
. Clackamas and Hood River.

(h} Douglas/South Coast Region includes all of the members located in the
counties of Coos, Curry, and Douglas.

{i) Linn, Benton, Lincoln Region includes all of the members lacated in the
counties of Benton, Lincoin, and Linn,

{i) Marion Region includes all of the members located in the county of Maricn.

Page 3

391



{k) Yambhill, Polk Region includes all of the members located in the counties of
Polk and Yamhill.

)] North Coast Region includes all of the members located in the counties of
Clatsop, Columbia, and Tillamook.

{m) Washington Region includes all of the members Iocated m the county of
Washington. :

{n) Multnomah Region includes all of the members Iocated in the county of
Multnomah.

Members shall be assigned to the region in which their main administrative office is located.
tf a member’s district boundaries span more than one region, the member board must declare
which region it intends to vote and shall vote only in that region. o

2.6.2 Regional elections shall be taken by majorify vote of the members within the region.

2.7 Moadification of Regions. A formal review of the regional organizations described in Section
2.6.1 shall be conducted by the board of directors at least every three years commencing with 2017,
Any recommended changes to the regional organization shall be submitted to the members in the
form of a resolution in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.11.

2.8 Annual Meetings. An annual meetingIOf members shall be held in November of each year
unless a different date or time is fixed by the hoard of directors and stated in the notice of the
meeting. Failure to hold an annual Mmeeting on the stated date shall not affect the validity of any
corporate action. At the annual meetmg, the presrdent and secretary-treasurer of the board of
directors, any other officer or person whom the president may designate, shall report on the state of
the Association, the actnwties and Fnanuak condatlon of the Association.

2.9 Special Meetlngs A speaai meeting of members shall be held upon the call of the president
or 25 percent of the board of derectors All members shall be officially notified of a special meeting
by written notice, mailed via U. S. mail or electronic mail to all members at least 15 days prior to the
date of the meeting. Such notice shajl include a description of all agenda items and any matters to
be voted upon by the members the place and time of the meeting, and instructions describing the
method by which members can participate by telephone or video. Naotice shall also comply with all
procedures and include any information as required by ORS Chapter 1592.

2.10 Telephomc/\l;deo Meetmgs The board of directors may permit any member to participate
in an annual or special meeting, or conduct the meetings through, use of any means of
communication by which all persons participating may simultaneously hear each other during the
meeting. A member participating in the meeting by this means is deemed to be present in person at

the meeting.

2.11 Piace of Meetings. Meetings of the members shall be held at any place in or ocut of Oregon
designated by the board of directors. If a meeting place is not designated by the board of directors,
the meeting shall be held at the Association’s principal office.

Page 4

{04158471-1}

392



2.12  Action by Written Ballot. Any acticn required of the members will be taken by written ballot

vet&e#&g%ater—-number-—ehﬂembefs— A quofum of the members shall consist of a malorztv of

members in good standmg at the tnme the ballots are to be returned to the association.

2.1.4 Aporoval: With the exceptxon of approvmg ameﬂdments to the Association’s bylaws, which
is outlined in Section 7. 1 of these bvlaws approval by written ballot is effective when:

2.14.1 The number of _votes cast by ballot equals or exceeds a guorum of the members;
and e

2.1.4.2 The number of approvals equals or exceeds a majority of the number of returned
ballots. T

SEC‘HON 3 DIRECTORS

3.1 Powers Except as prowded under Section 2.2, all corporate powers shall be exercised by or
under the auth_or;t_y__ofand the affairs of, are managed under the direction of a-the bhoard of directors.
The board of directors shall adopt policies defining specific obligations of the board of directors.

3.2 Qualifications. Directors must serve on the board of a member of the Association throughout
the duration of their term, with the exception of the director serving as past president.

33 Number. The board of directors shall consist of not fewer than three nor more than 24-25
persons. The number of directors may be fixed or changed periodically, within the minimum, and
maximurm by the members.

Page 5

{14159471-1 }

393



3.4

Term. Directors shall take office on January 1 and shall serve for a term of two calendar years

or until their successors are elected and qualified. Terms shall be staggered as per the election
calendar.

3.5

3.4.1 Directors who took office prior to January 1, 2018, and are re-elected may serve for
any number of terms as long as they continuously remain members of the board of directors.

3.4.2 Directors taking office on or after January 1, 2018, may serve flve consecutive two-
year terms and, if eligible, may rerun after a two-year hiatus.

3.4.3 If a director serving as immediate past aﬂ—eﬁﬁeeﬁgresiden. requifes additional time
beyond the term limits outlined above, the term limits will be held in abeyance to allow the
director to complete their term as immediate past president.

Composition. The board of directors will be comprised of up to 23 regionally elected

directors, one designated director as defined in the byiaws of the Oregon School Board Members of
Color Caucus, one designated director as defined in the bylaws of the Oregon Rural School Boards

Caucus

and ex-officio nonvoting members as delineated in Secti_on 3.5.4.

3.5.1 Regional Elected Directors. Each reg:on as descnbed under Section 2.6.1, shall elect
one director except as follows: SR :

(a) Clackamas Region shal.!...eiect two asl:éétors; .

{b) Marip_n_lfl_egi_p_n shall eiect”t_yyq directors;

(c) _Wa'shi:ﬁgton Rééion shall ete..ct_three directors; and

(d) = -;-.:_N.iultnomah Reglon shall elecf:fhree directors.

(e) ..I.Dr:‘.ovided 'ﬁ.tzaxn.fe.ver tha.t.if. t.l*.\e president or immediate past president of the
--board of dlrectors is a8 representative director from a region that elects only one

"':'director that region shall elect an additional director or directors to serve for the
duration_o_f the pres_ld_ent and/or the immediate past president’s term.

3.5.2 Regional E_lgéction. The nomination and election of directors shall be in accordance

“ - with the elections calendar annually adopted by the board. Each regional candidate for a

{08159471-1)

director position shall be nominated by a member within the region by means of a nomination
form. . The board of directors shall distribute notice of position vacancies, candidate
mformatlon packets, and official nomination forms to all incumbent directors and members
in electing regions. To nominate a director candidate, one or more of the members in the
region must timely submit to the board of directors a formal resolutien or motion of the
member and the completed nomination form(s}. Nominations in regions where there is more
than one open director position shall indicate the numbered position for which the
nomination is being submitted. Each member in a regicn shall have one vote in the regional
etections for the board of directors. The director candidate receiving a majority of the votes
of the members shall be elected. In cases where there are mere than two candidates
nominated for any position, and none receives a majority of the votes cast, a second ballot

Page 6

394



shall be required between the two candidates receiving the highest number of votes; the one
receiving a majority of the votes is elected.

3.5.3 Desngnated Representatlves In accordance with their bylaws, caucuses of QSBA; The

; : waeus-shall appoint an-officer-a representative of
the Caucus to serve as a drrector of the Association. The appeintes,as-defiped-inthe Causus
bylawsrepresentative must; shad-be an elected or appointed member of any public board of
education in Oregon who is an active member in good standing with the Association. Al
Association bylaws and policies shall apply to the designated representatlve serving as the
Caucus’ director of the Association.

3.5.4 Ex-Officio. The following individuals or their d951gnee may serve as ex- -officio
nonvoting advisors to the board of directors:

{a) Any director of the National School Boards Association elected from Oregon;

{b) Any officer of the National School Boards Association, National School Boards
Advocacy Committee, or an officer of the NSBA Pacific Region.

{c) The immediate past president of the Oregon Association of School Executives;

(d) The immediate past president of the Confederation of School Administrators;

fe) The board section president of the Oregon Association of Education Service
Districts;
(f) The board sec.;t._ii_qn president of the Oregon Community College Association;

{g) The chair of the State Board of Education; and
(h) Any other person as the board of directors may appoint.

3.6  Vacancies. In the event that any director position; other than the immediate past president
is vacant during the term of office, the remaining directors may appoint an interim director from the
same region to serve until December 31 of the same year. If the board of directors cannot recruit a
candidate from the region, they may appoint a person from a contiguous region to serve as director
representing the open reg_i:on. An individual appointed as a director from a contiguous region is not
eligible to serve as an offiéer of the board. The members shall elect, using the procedures in Section
3.5.2,an mtenm director to serve from January 1 of the next year until the end of the remaining term.
if thereis a vacancy in an OSBA caucus-designated director positionthe-bMembersoi ColorCaveus”
director-position, then the Gauweus-caucus shall, as set forth in Section 3.5.3, appoint a new Gaueus
caucus offieerrepresentative to serve the remaining term.

3.7 Resignation. A director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the president
or the secretary. A resignation is effective when notice is effective under ORS 65.034 unless the
notice specifies a later effective date. Once delivered, a notice of resignation is irrevocable unless
revocation is permitted by the board of directors.

Page 7

{04159471-11}

395



3.8 Removal. A director may be remaoved for cause by vote of two-thirds majority of the
directors. A director may be removed with or without cause by a majority vote of the members who
elected the director. The board may provide guidance or adopt and amend policies regarding what
types of actions the board considers to be sufficient cause for removal.

3.9 Meetings. An annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held immediately after, and
at the same place as, the annual meeting of members. If the time and place of any other directors’
meeting is regularly scheduled by the board of directors, the meeting is a regular meeting. Ali other
meetings are special meetings. A special meeting of the board of directors may be called by the
president or the president-elect or 20 percent of the board of directors.. The board of directors may
hold annual, regular or special meetings at any location in ereut-efthe State of Oregon.

3.10 Notice of Meetings. All members shall be officially notified of a special meeting by written
notice delivered personally, by telephone or electronic mail to all directors at least 48 hours prior to
the date of the meeting. Such notice shall include a description of all agenda items and any matters
to be voted upon by the directors, the place and time of the meeting, and instructions describing the
method by which directors can participate by telephone or video. Notice shall also comply with all
procedures and include any information as required by ORS Chapter 152.

3.11 Waiver of Notice. A director may at any time waive any notice required by these bylaws. A
director’s attendance at or participation in a meeting waives any required notice to the director of
the meeting unless the director, at the beginning of the meeting or promptly upon the director’s
arrival, objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not thereafter
vote for or assent to any action taken at the meeting. Except as provided in the preceding sentence,
any waiver must be in writing,'mOSt be signed by'th'e director entitled to the notice, must specify the
meeting for which the not|ce is walved and must be filed with the minutes or the corporate records.

3.12 Quorum»aﬁd—%kmng A quorum of the board of directors shall consist of a majority of the
number of dlrectors in oﬁice%mmeéiatewﬂbefe@e at the tlme the meetmg beglns &&a%wwm@

3+123.13 Votéﬂg.:.!i a guorum js present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority

of the directors present when the action is taken is the act of the board of directors except to the

extentthatthe a articles of incorporation, these bylaws, or applicable law require the vote of a greater

number of directors.:

S423.14 P;esumption of Assent. A director who is present at a meeting of the board of
directors when corporate action is taken is deemed to have assented to the action taken unless:

(a} The director objects at the beginning of the meeting, or promptly upon the
director’s arrival, to holding the meeting or transacting the business at the meeting;

and

{b) The director’s dissent from the action taken is entered in the minutes of the
meeting.

Page 8

{04159471-3 }

396



3+443.15 Compensation. Directors and members of committees may receive reimbursement
of such expenses as may be determined by resolution or policy of the board of directors to be just
and reasonable. Directors shall not otherwise be compensated for service in their capacity as
directors.

F453.16 Director Conflict of Interest. The Assaciation shall maintain a Conflict of interest
policy the terms of which comply with ORS 65.361 and ORS Chapter 244. The board of directors shall
annually review and notify its members and directors of the current Confiict of Interest policy. Each
director shall annually complete and return a Conflict of Interest statement, -

SECTION 4 COMMITTEES AND CAUCUSES

4.1 Standing Committees. The board of directors shall maintain the standing committees
described below: o

4.1.1 Executive Committee. The executive committee shall consist of five officers of the
board of directors: the president as chairman, the president-elect, the vice president, the
secretary-treasurer and the immediate past president, .The executive commitiee may act,
pursuant to delegation of authority to such committee by the board of directors, in place and
instead of the board of directors between board meetings on all matters except those
specifically reserved to the board under the terms of the bylaws. Actions of the executive
committee shall be reported to the board by mail, email or at the next board meeting.

4.1.2 _ Finance Committee. The finance committee shall be appointed by the president and
shall be composed of members from Oregon public school districts, education service
districts, and community cdlieges with boards that meet all criteria to be Association voting
members.  The “members " 's'hail include, ~but are not limited to, the Association
secretary/treasurer and vice pressdent one Association board dnrector from the PACE board,
one destrlct busmess 0ffiC|a| .and one at-large board member : rtEe 2

{z} ““Finance committee members serve for a term of two {2) vears unless they are

appointed to replace a member who left the committee before finishing their two-
year term, in which case the member will serve the remainder of the two-year term.

{b) The finance committee shall operate  within  the—puidelines—eaf—the
corporation’s investment pelieyguidelines and the Finance Commitiee o@perating

4-5:24.1.3 Legislative Policy Committee. The board of directors shall maintain a
Legislative Policy Committee {LPC).

{a) Purpose. The LPC shall develop legislative policies which are recommended
to and approved by the members as a resolution proposed by the board of directors
and voted on by the membership in accordance with Section 2.4. The LPC also advises
the executive director and staff during legislative sessions.

Page 9

{04159471-1}

397



{b) Composition. The LPC shail be composed of the voting members of the hoard
of directors and the regional representatives elected under the procedures defined in
4.1.3(c} and {d) and one designated voting member as defined in the bylaws o the
Qregon School Board Members of Color Caucus and the Oregon Rural School Boards
Caucus. Al committee members must be electad or appointed directors of a
member. The vice president of the beard-board of directors shall chair the LPC.

(c) Nomination. The board of directors shall cause the nomination form to be
distributed to all members in eligible regions. A member may nominate a candidate
to the LPC and shall do so by formal resolution of the memher and timely submission
of the nomination form(s) to the office of the Assoclation. Nominations in regions
where there is more than one representative position shall indicate the numbered
position for which the nomination is being submitted. Nominations will be ciosed by
a date identified in the elections calendar adopted by the board. e

{d) Efection. Each LPC member shall be elected by majority of member boards of
aregion. Each region shall elect the number of LPC members as described in Section
3.5, without regard to Section 3.5.1(d). Such elections shall be held using the
procedures described in Section 3.5.2. "

te}——Term. Each committee member shailtake ofﬂce on January 1in even numbered years
and serve for a term of two (2) years. N

Vacancies. In the event that there is a vacancy on the LPC, the board of directors may appoint
an interim LPC member from the same region to filf the unexpired term of office. If the board
of directors cannot recruit a'n_:l_._PC member from the region, they may appoint a person from
a contiguous region to serve to. represent the open region to fill the unexpired term of office.

4.1.4 PACE Trustees The board of directors shall apgoint the trustees of the OSBA Property
and Casualty Coverage for Education Trust {(“PACE”). As per the PACE bylawsRestated Trust
Agreement, the PACE trustees shall nominate trustee candidate(s) to the QSBA board of
dlfectors - : aard tors-lf the list of
- candidates is not acceptable bv the board of drrectors the PACE trustees will continue to
submit nominated candidate(s) for consideration until accepted by the board of directors.

(a) PACE Ftrustees taking office on or after January 1, 2023, may serve three
consecut:ve three-year terms and, if eligible, may return after a one-year hiatus.

4.2 Other Board Commlttees The board of directors may create one or more committees of the
board of directors and appoint directors and representatives of members to serve on such
committee. The creation of a committee and the appointment of directors and member
representatives to the committee must be approved by a majority of all directors in office when the
action is taken. The provisions of these bylaws governing meetings, action without meetings, notice
and waiver of notice, and quorum and voting requirements of the board of directors shall apply to
committees and their members as well, Committees of the board of directors may, to the extent
specified by the board of directors, exercise the authority of the board of directors; provided,
however, that no committee of the board of directors may:

Page 10

(041594711}

398



(a) Authorize distributions, provided that this restriction does not apply to
payment of value for property received or services performed or payment of benefits
in furtherance of the Association’s purposes;

{b) Approve or recommend dissolution, merger, or the sale, pledge, or transfer of
all or substantially all of the Association’s assets;

(c) Elect, appoint, or remove directors or fill vacancies on the board or on any of
its committees; or

(d) Adopt, amend, or repeal the articles of incorporation or bylaws.

4.3  Advisory Committees. The board of directors may create one or more other committees.
Members of these committees need not be members or directors, but at least one director shall serve
on each such committee. These committees shail have no power to act on behalf of, or to exercise
the authority of, the board of directors, but may make recommendations to the board of directors.

4.4 Caucuses. Caucuses shall exist to enhance the work of. the Assaciation by addressing the
unigue needs of member districts. Caucuses shall:

4.4.1 Clearly articulate the vision, missi_on and goals of the Caucus.

4.4.2 Adopt bylaws for operating, programmmg and governmg within the context of the
Association bylaws described herein.

4.4.3 Comply with _As's'bciéti_on policies and guidelines.

45-:34.4.4 “Caucuses shall - be added or. eliminated to this provision through the
amendment process descrtbed in these bylaws

4.4.5 W%h%qevaetepﬂe&e#ﬂ%&—seeheﬂ—%he—?he Oregon School Board Members of Color

Caucus iswas establtshed by a vote of the membership in 2018.

"4 4 5 with the adoption of th|s sections, the Oregon Rural School Boards Caucus s
established. :

4.5 “Administration. Each committee and caucus shall prepare minutes of each of its meetings,
and such minutes shall be kept on file at the Association’s principal office and made available on
request to any member of the board of directors. Each committee and caucus shall also report on its
activities at the regular meetings of the board of directors. Each committee and caucus shali comply
with the public meetings laws requirements under ORS Chapter 192.

SECTION 5 OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

5.1 Appointment. The board of directors shall elect officers by majority vote at least 10 days
prior to the November member meeting. In cases where there are more than two candidates
nominated for any position, and none receives a majority of the votes, a second baliot shall be

Page 11

{0415%471-1)

399



required between the two candidates receiving the highest number of votes. The cne receiving a
majority of the votes is elected.

5.2 Designation. The officers of the Association shall be a president, president-elect, past
president, vice president, a secretary-treasurer, and such other officers as the board of directors may

appoint.

5.3 Compensation and Term of Office. Officer terms are one calendar year. No officer except
the secretary-treasurer shall serve two consecutive terms in the same offiCe unless the director
completed a term for another officer who was unable to complete a term and is then voted into the
same position the following year. The secretary-treasurer may serve up to two consecutlve one-year
terms. Directors and members of committees may receive reimbursement of such expenses as may
be determined by resolution of the board of directors to be just and reasonable. Dsrectors shaEl not
otherwise be compensated for service in their capacity as darectors

5.4 Removal and Resignation. Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, at any
time by action of the board of directors. An officer may resign at any time by delivering notice to the
board of directors, the president, or the secretary-treasurer, = A resignation is effective when the
notice is effective under ORS 65.034 uniess the notice specifies a later effective date. |If a
resignation is made effective at a later date and the Association accepts the later effective date,
the board of directors may fill the pending vacancy before the effective date if the board of directors
provides that the successor does not take office until the effective date. Once delivered, a notice
of resignation is irrevocable uniess revocation is permitt_ed' by the board of directors. No removal or
resignation shall prejudice the rights of any party_unde_r:a contract of employment.

5.5  Officers. The officers of the Association are as follows:

5.5.1 Presndent The preSldent shall preside at all member meetings of the Association and

of the board of dlrectors, shall appoint, committees subject to the approval of the board of
. directors; shall call all regular and special meetings as provided herein; shall be ex-officio
voting member of all committees. The president shall automatically serve as immediate past

president for the foi_i_owmg term. The president serves for a term of one calendar year.

/5,52 President-elect: In the absence of the president, the president-elect shall assume the
powers and duties of the president, and when a vacancy occurs in the office of president,
shall serve in that capacity for the remainder of the term. The president-elect shall
automaticaily serve as president for the following term, even if required to fill an
uncompleted term as president. In addition, the president-elect shall assume duties related
to the oversight of Association member elections and resolutions processes and such other
administrative duties as are assigned by the president. The president-elect serves for a term

of one calendar year.

5.5.3 Vice president: In the absence of the president-elect shall assume the powers and
duties of the president-elect. The vice president shall also serve as the chair of the LPC. The

vice president serves for one calendar year.

Page 12

{04159471-1 1

400



SECTIO

5.5.4 Secretary-treasurer: The secretary-treasurer shall be responsible for keeping in
a suitable minute book accurate minutes of all board of director meetings; shall carry on
official correspondence of the Association; shall arrange for proper hanking facilities;
and shall receive, account for and disburse funds in a businesslike manner as provided for by
the board of directors; shali see that the minutes of the previous meetings are read, and
shall give an itemized and detailed report of the financial condition of the Association at
each annual meeting and at such other times as may be required by the board of directors.
Such duties of the secretary-treasurer as may be specified by the board of directors may be
delegated to the executive director or a designated member of the staff The secretary-
treasurer serves for a term of one calendar year.

5.5.,5 immediate past president: The immediate past president shall advise and counsef
with other officers. The immediate past president chairs the officer succession planmng
process. The past president serves for one calendar year o

5.5.6 Assistants: The board of directors may appoint or authorize the appointment of an
assistant to the secretary-treasurer. Such assistant may exercise the powers of the secretary-
treasurer, as the case may be, and shall perform such duties as are prescribed by the board

of directors.

N 6 NONDISCRIMINATION

The Association shall not discriminate in providing services, 'hi'f;ing employees, or otherwise, upon the
basis of gender, race, creed, mantal status, sexuai onentat:on religion, color, age, disability, or
national origin. :

SECTIO

7.1

{04159471-1 }

N7 GENERAL PEiOVtSIONS

Amendment of Bylaws

7.1.1 Amendments to the bylaws may be initiated by the board of directors or submitted
by a member to the board of directors. A i S : ot -

7.1.2 _The bo_a"rd of directors shall provide written notice to the members containing a
statement that the members will be asked to approve the amendment and a copy of the

proposed amended byla

7.1.3 Action by Written Ballot: The Association will deliver a written ballot to every
member entitled to vote on the matter. The ballot shall set forth each proposed action and
provide an opportunity to vote for or against each proposed action and specify a reasonahle
time by which a ballot must be received by the Association in order to be counted. Once

delivered, a ballot may not be revoked.

Page 13

401



7.1.4  Angnroval: Approval by written ballot shall be valid only when the number of votes
cast by ballot equals or exceeds a quorum of the members, and the number of approvals
equals or exceeds two-thirds majority of the number of the returned ballots.

7.1.5 Quorum: A quorum of the members shall consist of a majority of members in good
standing at the time the ballots are to be returned te the Associatian.

Fi27.1.6 Whenever an amendment or new bylaw is adopted, it shall be copied in the
minute book with the original bylaws in the appropriate place. If any bylaw is repealed, the
fact of repeal and the date on which the repeai occurred shall be stated in such book and

place.

7.2 Inspection of Books and Records. All books, records, and accounts of the Association shall
be open to inspection by the directors in the manner and to the extent required by law. '

7.3 Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts, and other or_d_'érs for payment of money, notes, or other
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of or payable to the Association shall be signed or
endorsed by such person or persons and in such manner as shai! be determined by resolution of the

board of directors.

7.4 Deposits. All funds of the Association not otherwise employed shall be deposited to the
credit of the Association in those banks, trust companies or other depositories as the board of
directors or officers of the Association designated by the board of dlrectors select, or be invested as
authorized by the board of dwectors

7.5 Loans or Guaran_te_es. The__r’.Association shall not borrow money and no evidence of
indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by the board of directors. This authority
may be general or confined to specific instances. Except as explicitly permitted by ORS 65.364, the
Association shall not make a loan, gua'rantee an obligation or modify a pre-existing loan or guarantee
to or for the benefitof a director or officer of the Association.

7.6 Exe_cution_ -_o__f_Documents. The board of directors may, except as otherwise provided in these
bylaws, authorize any officer or agent to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the
name of and on behalf of the Association. Such authority may be general or confined to specific
instances. Unless so authorlzed by the board of directors, no officer, agent, or employee shall have
any power or authority to bmd the Association by any contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit,
or to render it liable for any purpose or for any amount,

7.7 Insurance. The Association may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of an individual
against liability asserted against or incurred by the individual who is or was a director, officer,
employee, or agent of the Association, or who, while a director, officer, employee, or agent of the
Association, is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director, officer, partner, trustee,
employee, or agent of another foreign or domestic business or nonprofit corporation, partnership,
joint venture, trust, employee henefit plan, or other enterprise; provided, however, that the
Association may not purchase or maintain such insurance to indemnify any director, officer, or agent
of the Association in connection with any proceeding charging improper personal benefit to the
director, officer, or agent in which the director, officer, or agent was adjudged liable on the basis that
persanal benefit was improperly received by the director, officer, or agent.

Page 14

{04158471-1}

402



7.8 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of July 1 and end on
the last day of June in each year.

7.9 Severability, A determination that any provision of these bylaws is for any reason
inapplicable, invalid, iilegal or otherwise ineffective shall not affect or invalidate any other provision

of these bylaws.
* ok ook ok ok
The foregoing bylaws were approved by the membership of the Oregon School Boards Association

on December 14, 2018. The original bylaws were duly adopted by the Board of Directors of OSBA on
September 15, 2017, and approved by the membership on December 15, 2017.

Page 15

(041594711}

403



